United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

SIXTH SESSION
Official Records

FIFTH COMMITTEE 305tk

MEETING

Thursday, 6 December 1951, at 10.30 a.m.

Palais de Chaillot, Paris

CONTENTS

Page

Budget estimales for the financial year 1952 : (a) Budget estimates submitted
by the Secretary-General (A/1812 and Add. 1, A/C.5/448, A/C.5/451);
(b) Reports of the Advisory Committee on Adwinistrative and Budgetary

Questions (A/1853, A/1981)

First rcading (confinued)........

United Nations telecommunications system: report of the Secretary-General

(A/1919)

.........................................................

Chairman : Mr, T. A. StoNg (Canada).

Budget estimates for the financial year 1952: (a)
Budget estimates submitted by the Secretary-
General (A/1812 and Add. 1, A/C.5/448, A/
C.5/451); (b) Reports of the Advisory Com-
mittee on Administrative and Budgetary Ques-
tions (A/1853, A/1981)

[Ttem 41]*

First reading (continued)

Part 1V, sectioN 20 (cHAPTER IV). EcoNomic COMMIS-
SION FOR EUROPE; PART VI, sEcTioN 22, EcoNoMIC
COMMISSION FOR ASIA AND THE FAR EAST; SECTION 23.
EcovoMic CoMMISSION FOR LATIN AMERICA (con-
cluded)

1. Mr. KYIN (Burma) wondered whether it would not
be advisable to cancel the meeting and to postpone
consideration of the budget of the regional economic
commissions, since several delegations, and particularly
those of under-developed countries, were unable to be
represented in the Fifth Committee owing to the
plenary meeting of the General Assembly.’

2, The CHAIRMAN proposed that the Commission
should adhere to the agenda it had adopted at the pre-
ceding meeting.

It was so agreed.

3. Mr. MYRDAL (Executive Secretary on the Economic
Commission for Europe) said that the regional econo-
mic commissions greatly appreciated the undivided
support they had received from the Economic and
Social Council and the Fifth Committee, despite the
slight difference of opinion between certain members
of the Committee and the Secretary-General as to the
amount of the appropriations to be made available to
those commissions.

* Indicates the
agenda.

item number on the General Asscmbly

4. He recalled that the secretariat establishment of
the Economic Commission for Europe had been redu-
ced by fifteen posts, or 10 per cent, between 1950
and 1951 and that in his estimates for 1952 the Secre-
tary-General proposed the suppression of yet another
permanent post and a reduction of the total appropria-
tions, despite the inevitable increase of expenditure
due to automatic salary increases.

5. Replying to a point made by the Chairman of the
Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary
Questions, he stated that ECE had drawn up its current
work programme in 1950, in anticipation of the deci-
sion of the Economic and Social Council and before
the latter had decided at its thirteenth session to con-
tinue the Commission in being. Hence the suppression
by the Commission of the fifteen posts already men-
tioned.

6. After carefully considering the reduction of § 42,700
recommended by the Advisory Committee, the Secre-

tary-General had found that that would mean a further ' -

reduction in the staff of the Secretariat where there
was not a single vacancy; consequently, the Commis-
sion would be constrained to abandon part of its work
programme. The economic situation in Europe made
the work of the Commission no less necessary in 1952
than it had been in previous years.

7. Replying to the CHAIRMAN, Mr. DONOSO (Chile)
cxplained that the oral proposal made by his delegation
during the general discussion of the budget of the
regional economic commissions at the previous meeting
should be regarded as a group of three separate pro-
posals, applicable to cach of the three commissions
severally,

8. Mr. KYIN (Burma) said that his proposal was to
be considered in exactly the same way.

9. Mr. HALL (United States of America) recognized
the value of the statistical and economic reports pre-
pared by ECE. The Governments concerned should

119

A/G.5/SR.305 -



120"

General Assembly—Sixth Session—Fifth Committee

' participate more closely in its work. He stated,
‘hdowever, that the competence and present capacity of
~/ECE should permit it to absorb additional work without
/an increase in staff.

10. He agreed with the Advisory Committee that the
Liaison Office to the Allied High Commission in Ger-
'many might be closed.

f'411. His delegation was in favour of ihe appropria-
tions proposed by the Advisory Committee for ECE.

12. Miss WITTEVEEN (Netherlands) wished to com-
‘ment in detail on the question of regional economic
commissions as a whole. Previous statements showed
that the differences were more apparent than real and
related more to the use which the commissions should
make of the appropriations than to their actual
‘amount.

13. Members of the Fifth Committee who supported
the Secretary-General’s budget estimates had said that
‘the reduction recommended by the Advisory Com-
‘xpittee would affect the work of the three commissions
adversely. To adopt those reductions would, they
believed, be tantamount to declaring that the United
Nations considered the under-developed countries to
have made sufficient progress already, so that the
assistance given them could now be reduced; it would,
they argued, mean a vote of non-confidence in the com-
missions and in the Economic and Social Council and
would prevent the Secretariat from discharging its
responsibilities.

14. If the Netherlands delegation shared these appre-
hensions it would not hesitate to vote against the
reduciions recommended by the Advisory Committee.
‘However, analysis of the differences between the two
sets of figures showed that adoption of the Advisory
Committee’s recommendations would have no adverse
_effects on the highly important work of the three com-
missions. When examining the figures it was neces-
sary to take into consideration the tfotal amount of
the funds appropriated for economic and social pur-
poses by the United Nations and the specialized agen-
cies out of their regular budgets, and in the form of
voluntary contributions., Needless to say, everyone
wished that still more could be done; but it could
not be denied that the human, financial and other
resources available had limits, while the necessity for
concentrating efforts and resources could not be
disregarded. The recipient countries themselves would
suffer by any waste in these matters.

15. It should be noted that the reductions proposed
by the Advisory Committee were not the largest recom-
mended. To appreciate their real extent they should
be compared with the increases requested in the budget
estimates.

16. In the casc of the Economic Commission for
Europe, the recommended reduction was $42,700.
Even if that reduction would, as the Secretary-General
had claimed, compel the Commission to curtail its
activities, it did not necessarily follow that its work
would be any the less useful provided it concentrated
actively on essential tasks. Savings might be effected
by an administrative simplification, and might be
further increased if the Liaison Office were discon-
tinued in 1952, It should also be possible to reduce
the publications list, for which much larger funds had
been asked than in 1951. Provided, therefore, the

Secretary-General was authorized to spread the reduc-
tion at his discretion, the figure of § 980,000 recom-
mended by the Advisory Commitiee was acceptable,
particularly as it would probably be very near ihe
amount of the actual expenses in 1951.

17. In the case of the Economic Commission for Asia
and the Far East, the difference between the Secretary-
General’s estimate and the Advisory Committee’s recom-
mendation had been reduced to $43,900. With regard
to staff, the sole point of disagreement was one post
of information officer and one post of secretary. Here,
as in the case of the Economic Commission for Latin
America, a question of principle arose. To attach an
information officer to a regional economic commis-
sion amounted to adding a new centre to the infor-
mation services. The report of the Sub-Committee to
review the principles governing the work of the Depart-
ment of Public Information would enable the Com-
mittee to decide on the need for such additional
information centres in Asia and Latin America. The
necessary staffs should, if voted, come under the
information services, and not absorb funds appro-
priated for economic purposes, but the drafting of
press releases on meetings could surely be left to the
competent members of the Commission’s staff. Appro-
val should accordingly be withheld from these posts
under section 22.

18. The reductions recommended for temporary per-
sonnel, consultants and travel costs of mission staffs
were in line with the reductions recommended for
other sections of the budget. The Advisory Committee
might however give an assurance that it would look
with a favourable eye on any requests for transfers
submitted by the Secretary-General, should difficulties
arise in that connexion, The increased credits reques-
ted for office equipment and transport maintenance
did not appear to be justified.

19. She did not think that the Advisory Committee’s
recommendations, if adopted with the reservation she
had just made, would hamper ECAFE in its work,
since the only cut proposed affected the information
services. She would therefore vote for the Advisory
Committee’s recommendations.

20. With regard to the budget of the Economic Com-
mission for Latin America, she pointed out that the
increase requested by the Secretary-General was pro-
portionately extremely high, and that difficulties were
liable to arise from the assimilation of so large a
number of new staff members. She did not wish, at
that stage, to express an opinion on the suggestion to
replace consultants by regular staff members for cer-
tain functions; she would be inclined to accept the
opinion of the Executive Secretary, which was based
on the experience of previous years, but then a smaller
amount should be provided for consultants.

21. The difference between the Advisory Committee’s
recommendations and the Sccretary-General’s budget
estimates was only $ 49,700, to be distributed by the .
Secretary-General at his discretion. Part of that reduc-
tion was due to the differential to be applied to
salaries for posts in the general services of the Mexico
unit., The increase in the Commission’s budget would
still be $ 122,500, or 20 per cent,

22. She feared that the setting up of the Mexico Unit
might be used as a precedent. The regional economic
commissions were already largely decentralized, and



further dispersion might reduce their effectiveness.
Although she understood that the object of setting up
the Mexico Unit was to enhance the Commission’s
services, she urged the utmost caution in the matter.

23. The reduction of $49,700 included also the sum
requested for the information officer already men-
tioned.

24. For travel on official business the budget estimates
gave the same figure as for the financial year 1951,
although it was stated on page 226 of the budget esti-
mates (A/1812) that the setting up of the Mexico Unit
would lead to considerable savings in travel costs.

25. She thought it reasonable to accept the Advisory
Committee’s recommendations on ECLA with the same
reservation as in the case of ECAFE. She hoped she
had convinced the members of the Committee that
adoption of the Advisory Committee’s recommendations
would have no adverse effects on the work of the
regional economic commissions, which was of such
great value to so many people throughout the world.

26. Mr. MACHADO (Brazil) said that he had been
instructed by his Government to vote in favour of the
Secretary-General’s original estimates. Dealing with
Mr. Myrdal’s statement that ECE’s work for 1952 was
as urgent and important as it had been at the time of
the Commission’s establishment, he recognized that
ECE had been set up at a time of exceptional gravity
in the European economic position, but pointed out
that, thanks to the exertions that had been put forth
and the Marshall Plan, Europe had made considerable
economic progress since then. The task of ECE there-
fore presented itself in a different light and he felt
that it might be possible to postpone carrying out cer-
tain parts of the ECE secretariat’s programme of work.

27. The position of the two other regional economic
commissions was completely different, because their
work was carried out among the under-developed coun-
tries, whose economic situation had made little progress
since the end of the war. The work of those two
commissions was therefore as urgent as ever.

28. In the circumstances, he felt that there was no
need to decide finally on the composition of the ECE
secretariat: it would of course be advisable to main-
tain a nucleus of experts, but certain parts of the ECE
work programme should only be initiated as and when
credits could be voted for them.

29. Mr. ROSHCHIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Repu-
blics) said that his delegation sought constantly to
avoid useless expenditure and always supported pro-
posals for economy. Nevertheless, the USSR delegation
considered that the regional economic commissions
played a positive and very useful part and that it would
therefore be inexpedient to limit their activities by
reducing the funds at their disposal, which might
impair the value of their contribution to the economic
development of many countries. For example, it was
necessary to make an exhaustive study of all aspects
of the economic situation in Europe and to take steps
to promote the development of economic relations
among the various countries in that region. The Euro-
pean economy had been violently dislocated during
and after the first and second world wars. Nothing
that might contribute to the re-establishment of equi-
librium should be neglected.

30. In the circumstances, the USSR delegation regar-
ded the Advisory Committee’s recommendations to
reduce the Secretary-General’s original estimates as
inopportune, and would vote in favour. of appropria-
tions to cover those estimates.

31. It was, however, opposed to maintaining the ECE
Liaison Office at Frankfurt, since it felt that there was
no authority for the Office in the Commission’s terms
of reference. However, in its desire not to impede the
Commission’s activities in any way, it would be w1llmg
to vote in favour of the full amount of the Secretary-
General’s original estimates, while reserving the right
to propose at the second reading that the appropria-
tions for the Liaison Office at Frankfurt should be
discontinued, If the Fifth Committee rejected the
Secretary-General’s original estimates, his delegation
would ask for a separate vote on the estimate for the
Liaison Office.

32. The USSR delegation felt that the activities of the
two other regional economic commissions should be
in harmony with the purposes of the United Nations
and that their action in the economic field should
strengthen international peace and security. It would
therefore vote against the Advisory Committee’s recom-
mendations reducing the Secretary-General’s original
estimates.

33. Mr. VOUGT (Sweden) agreed with those speakers:
who had already emphasized the value and importance
of the work done by the regional economic commis-
sions. His delegation had followed closely the work
of ECE and felt, like many others, that it would be
wiser nol to adopt the Advisory Committee’s recom-
mendations to reduce the Secretary-General’s original
estimates. It should be remembered in that connexion
that the ECE secretariat had already been reduced by,
sixteen posts between 1950 and 1952, The Swedish
delegation had the impression that the Secretary-
General had done all that he could to limit the expenses
of the ECE secretariat and would therefore vote in
favour of the Secretary-General’s original estimates.

34. Mr. NOSEK (Czechoslovakia) said that his dele-
gation had supported all the Advisory Committee’s,
recommendations so far. It would however make an
exception in the case of the ECE budget and would|
vote in favour of the Secretary-General’s original
estimates because il felt that the amount requested by
the Secretary-General was in accordance with the
imporiance of that Commission's activities.

35. At the thirieenth session of the Economic and’
Social Council, his delegation had approved the action’
taken by ECE to bring about closer economic co-opera-
tion among the various European countries. The
Czechoslovak delegation would therefore vote in favour,
of the Secretary-General’s original estimates for ECE
and for the two other regional economic commissigns.-

36. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the amendment
of Burma and Chile increasing by $ 42,700 the apprao-|
priations recommended by the Advisory Committee for
section 20, chapter IV, thus raising the total amount
to $1,022,700.

The amendment of Burma and Chile was adopted by
25 votes to 14, with 7 abstentions.

37. Mr. HALL (United States of America) observe’d;r,
that certain elements in the programme of work of.
the Economic Commission for Asia and the Far East
seemed to belong more to the sphere of the Technical’

LAY




122

General Assemb.ly-—-'Sixt.h Session—Fifth Committee

Assistance Administration. He asked ihe Secretary-
General to consider that point and determine whether
it would be possible to make the appropriate adjust-
ments when the budget estimates for 1953 were pre-

_pared.

38. His delegation thoughi there was little to be said
in favour of the Secretary-General's proposal for a
post of information officer in the ECAFE secretariat.
The nearest information centres could be called upon
for assistance and in the circumstances he proposed
that the budget estimates should be correspondingly
reduced.

39. His delegation attached the greatest importance
to the regional economic commissions’ work but urged
that the secretariats of those commissions should never
forget the need for strict economy. He was parti-
cularly disturbed by the estimates for travel on official
business and for stationery and office supplies.

40. Mr. HSIA (China) was also ready to vote in favour
of the Secretary-General’s original estimates but agreed
with the representatives of the Netherlands and the
United States with regard to the post of information
officer and hoped that the Secretary-General would
give further consideration to that matter,

41. Mr. ADARKAR (India) thought that it would
undoubtedly be useful to establish the post of infor-
mation officer. Many members of the Committee had
spoken in favour of more extensive information acti-
vities in the under-developed countries. It should not
be forgotten that the Committee’s decisions were
intended fo provide funds which the Secretary-General
was not necessarily bound to spend. If, therefore, the
Sub-Committee set up to review the principles
governing the work of the Department of Public Infor-
mation recommended the adoption of a policy in regard
to information which would make the establishment

“of the post in question unnecessary, the Indian dele-

gation would not oppose a corresponding reduction in
the budget estimates. He thought, however, that for
the time being there was no special reason for refusing
to grant the appropriations requested by the Secretary-
General.

42. With reference to the United States representa-
tive’s remarks concerning the items of the ECAFE
secretariat’s programme of work which he had sug-

.gested should be transferred to the Technical Assis-

tance Administration, it should be poinied out that the
Co-ordination Committee of the Economic and Social
Council had carefully studied the question and that in
the circumstances there was no rcason to challenge
the propriety of its conclusions.

43. Mr. ANDERSON (Secretariai) observed that the
functions which it was proposed to assign to an infor-
mation officer could not be performed by any other
member of the ECAFE secretariat,

44. Mr. HALL (United States of America) withdrew
his proposal for elimination of the information officer
post, although he was still not entirely convinced of
the need for the proposed post. He hoped that the
Sub-Committee to review the principles governing the
work of the Department of Public Information would
consider the question.

45. In reply to the observations of the Indian repre-
sentative, he reminded the Committee that he was not
proposing a reduction in the estimates because of any

overlapping with TAA functions. All that he wished
to do was to ensure that there was no duplication of
functions as between ECAFE on the one hand and
the Technical Assistance Administration on the other.

46. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the amendment
submitted by Burma and Chile to increase by $ 51,400
the appropriations recommended by the Advisory Com-
mittee for section 22, thus raising the total for the
section {o $ 926,400,

The umendment was adopled by 37 votes lo 7, with
3 abstentions.

47. Mr. DONOSO (Chile) recalled that his delegation
had already stated its attitude on the three regional
economic commissions. He had said at the previous
meeting that he would vote for the Secretary-General’s
original estimates with the reduction of $35,000
recommended by the Advisory Committee and accepted
by the Secretary-General. He then referred to para-
graph 327 of the Advisory Committee’s report and
paragraph 33 of the statement by the Secretary-General
(A/C.5/448). His delegation was prepared to agree to
the rate of 90 Chilean pesos to the dollar recommended
by the Advisory Committee, but he pointed out that
the question might be re-opened if the value of the
Chilean peso increased in relation to the United States
dollar. He asked for the opinion of the Chairman of
the Advisory Committee on that point.

48. Mr. AGHNIDES (Chairman of the Advisory Com-
mittee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions)
said that the Committee would give sympathetic consi-
deration to the Secretary-General’s proposals for a
solution of the problem should it arise in the coursc
of the financial year. When a case of the kind had
occurred on a previous occasion, the Advisory Com-
mittee had authorized a transfer.

49, Mr. MACHADO (Brazil) said that he too would
vote for the Secretary-General’s revised estimates. The
Netherlands representative had raised the question of
the Mexico Unit. In that connexion he recalled that
although Europe was much smaller than South Ame-
rica, the Committee had decided to maintain the ECE
Liaison Office at Frankfurt. Distances were much
greater in Latin America and the establishment of the
Mexico Unit would be a natural development of
ECLA’S activities. It would not create a precedent but
was entirely justifiable,

50. Mr. ADARKAR (India) recailed that at the previous
meeting he had urged that ECLA needed all the credits
proposed by the Secretary-General. He pointed out
that besides the Chilean peso, the exchange rates of
a number of other currencies, in which certain United
Nations expenses were met, varied in relation to the
dollar, which naturally affected the implementation of
the budget. He wondered, therefore, whether it would
not be well to establish a special fund to counterbalance
fluctuations in exchange rates. The General Assembly
would adopt a budget drawn up in dollars, as usual,
and the Secretary-General could make use of the fund
to compensate, as far as possible, any fluctuations in
exchange rates in different parts of the world.

51. The CHAIRMAN said that the Secretariat would
take note of the Indian representative’s suggestion.

52, Miss WITTEVEEN (Netherlands) observed that
the ECE Liaison Office to the Allied High Commission
in Germany at Frankfurt had notl been established for



S05ih Noning 6 Docmbir 1951

any geographical reasons. She added that the distances
on the continent of Asia were much greater than those
in Latin America.

53. Mr. BUSTAMANTE (Mexico) emphasized that the
establishment of the Mexico Unit would not create a
precedent. It had not been decided to set it up for
geographical reasons only; its sphere of action would
lie more especially among the countries in the Carib-
bean, which shared economic problems sometimes
quite unlike those of the other Latin American coun-
tries. The Unit would therefore serve the same purpose,
on a smaller scale, as that served by the regional eco-
nomic commissions, and his delegation would conse-
quently vote in favour of it.

54. Mr. HALL (United States of America) stated that
in view of what the Mexican representative had said,
he would vote for the establishment of the Mexico Unit.
There was, however, no more justification for a post
of information officer in ECLA than for a similar post
in ECAFE and, while not insisting on its deletion, he
requested that the situation be kept under review.

55. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the amendment
proposed by Burma and Chile increasing by $ 49,700
the appropriations recommended by the Advisory
Committee for section 23, bringing the total for the
section up to $674,700.

The amendment of Burma and Chile was adopted by
37 votes to 8, with 2 abstentzons

United Nations telecommunications system: report,,
of the Secretary-General (A/1919)

[Item 47]* i

56. The CHAIRMAN opened the debate on the Secré:d
tary-General’s report on the United Nations telecom-“
munications system (A/1919).

57. Mr. BRENNAN (Australia), observing that the 4
members of the Committee had only very recently -
received the Secretary-General’s report, asked for its *

consideration by the Committee to be postponed to:;
give his delegation time to obtain instructions from~
its Government, :

58. Mr. FOURIE (South Africa) supported the Austra-‘ [
lian representative’s request. ;

59. The CHAIRMAN said that consideration of the“
Secretary-General’s report would be postponed. - ' ."

60. Mr. MACHADO (Brazil) pointed out that the Secre« !
tary-General’s report raised questions of administrative . ; F
and financial policy and proposed that it should be .-
referred to the Sub-Committee to review the principles 5
governing the work of the Department of Publl 5
Information.

5

61. The CHAIRMAN stated that the Secretariat would
take note of the Brazilian representative’s proposal. ‘/4

The meeting rose at 12.30 p.m.

&

é

Printed in France

Dx—93430—January 1952-—8,600K






